Healthy Places, Healthy People

Snapshots of where we live, learn, work, and play.

2012

Table of Contents

Acknowledgments	i
	ii
Economic Health	1
Household Income	2
Unemployment	4
Poverty Among Adults	6
Poverty Among Children	8
Rent Burden	10
Crowded Living Conditions	12
Average Commute Time	14
Commuters Driving Alone	16
References	18
Educational Health	19
Children Attending Preschool	20
English Learners	22
High School Graduation	24
Adults with High School Diploma	26
References	28
Community Health	29
Healthy Food Availability	30
Park Availability	32
Alcohol Outlet Density	34

Child Abuse and Neglect	36
Juvenile Probationers	38
Crime Rate	40
References	42
Physical Health	43
Children with Health Insurance	44
Children with Medi-Cal	46
Adults with Health Insurance	48
Access to Health Care Providers	50
Avoidable Emergency Department Visits	52
Early Prenatal Care	54
Low Birth Weight Infants	56
Infant Mortality	58
Breastfeeding	60
Births to Teens	62
Teenage Alcohol Use	64
Teenage Smoking	66
Teens with Healthy Body Weight	68
Pedestrian Injuries	70
Bicycle Injuries	72
Life Expectancy	74
References	76

Acknowledgments

The Healthy Places, Healthy People report would not have been possible without the data and resources provided by the following agencies and the expertise of their representatives:

California Department of Alcohol Beverage Control California Department of Education California Department of Public Health California Employment Development Department California Highway Patrol Children and Families Commission of Orange County Federal Bureau of Investigation GreenInfo Network Orange County Department of Education Orange County Health Care Agency Orange County Probation Department Orange County Social Services Agency United States Census Bureau WestEd

Resources

Annie E. Casey Foundation KIDS COUNT Baby-Friendly Hospital Initiative

http://www.bicyclinginfo.org/

Brookings Institution Metropolitan Opportunity Project California Maternal Quality Care Collaborative Center for American Progress Center for Substance Abuse Prevention Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Economic Development Administration Health Workforce Information Center Kaiser Commission on Medicaid and the Uninsured Kaiser Family Foundation National Association of Workforce Boards National Center for Adult Learning and Literacy National Center for Children in Poverty National Center for Safe Routes to School National Criminal Justice Reference Service

National Gang Center Office of Vocational and Adult Education PolicyLink Promising Practices Network Public Health Law and Policy Task Force on Community Preventive Services Teen Pregnancy Prevention 2010-2015 The Urban Institute Trust for Public Land United States Census Bureau's Complete Count Committee United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention United States Department of Education's Institute of Education Sciences United States Department of Health and Human Services Center for Medi-care and Medicaid Services United States Department of Housing and Urban Development United States Department of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and **Delinguency Prevention** United States Environmental Protection Agency http://www.walkinginfo.org/

Healthy Places, Healthy People 2011 Project Team:

Travers Ichinose, Orange County Health Care Agency Alyce Mastrianni, Children and Families Commission of Orange County Amy Buch, Orange County Health Care Agency Curtis Condon, Orange County Health Care Agency Lisa Burke, Burke Consulting Kari Parsons, Parsons Consulting, Inc. Limor Zimskind, Limor Consulting, Inc. Elliott Bubis, Social Services Agency Stanley Bassin, University of California, Irvine Donna Fleming, Orange County Health Care Agency Ryan Ramos, Orange County Health Care Agency Sandy Viernes, Orange County Health Care Agency

Special thanks to the California Endowment and Latino Health Access whose support helped fund the writing of this report.

Introduction

Introduction

A variety of social, economic, and environmental conditions are known to influence the health of our communities. For most of these conditions, Orange County fares relatively well compared to the State and peer counties. However, there are significant sub-county differences, which are often masked by county-level summaries. This Healthy Places, Healthy People Report uses existing available data to provide a localized level of information to communities. The report focuses on select indicators that are actionable and reliable measures of health or the social, economic, and environmental conditions that are known to predict or pattern it. The report relies on an online distribution to promote cost-effective access to the data.

Indicator Format and Variation

Indicators in this report fall within the categories of financial health, educational health, community health, and physical health. Each indicator includes a description of what is being measured, an explanation of its importance to health, and a map that visually illustrates how the various communities fare for that particular indicator. The majority of indicators also include a table showing cities within Orange County and how they compare to each other, the state and nation.

To give the reader a more in depth perspective, data in the maps are broken down by the finest level of geography available, either by city, school district, zip code, or census tract. Data in the tables are broken down only by city or school district, therefore, the level of data may differ between the table and map within an indicator. Some maps combine additional years of data to enable a more specific geographical focus.

In some cases, the data in a geographic area may have a very small sample size, which can make the data unreliable. When this is the case, or if data are missing for a geographic area, the impacted area is not included in the tables or noted on the maps.

Throughout the report, the data in the maps have been broken down into quartiles – four evenly distributed levels. The four levels have been shaded so that more intense color correlates to a higher level of need or a worse outcome. In other words, the darker the color, the greater the need or worse the condition; the lighter the color, the lesser the need or better the condition.

References

Each indicator includes a discussion of why that indicator is important to health. The various studies and research documents that define the links between the indicator and health outcomes are provided in the references at the end of each section.

Economic Health

Household Income

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the median annual income of households. Income includes wages, salary, commissions, bonuses, and tips from all jobs held by all working members of a household.

Why is this Important to Health?

Low income and wide variations in income within a community can impact health (1). People with low incomes are more likely to have chronic diseases, reduced access to health care, and engage in harmful behaviors, such as smoking (2, 3, 4). As a result, risk of disability and premature death is higher among those with low income than those with high income (3). According to a review by Marmot, those at the lowest income levels - below \$15,000 annually - have mortality rates almost four times those of persons with incomes over \$70,000 (3). In addition, wide variations in income within a community may negatively affect health status due, in part, to the psychological stress of consciously perceived differences in wealth and reduced social cohesion (5).

Resources

PolicyLink, a research and advocacy organization focused on best practices for economic advancement, published Pathways Out of Poverty for Vulnerable Californians and offers the Economic Opportunity Tool Group with varied strategies for poverty reduction.

Location	Median Annual Household Income by City, 2007-2009	
Yorba Linda	\$110,005	
Newport Beach	\$109,088	
Rancho Santa Margarita	\$101,551	
Laguna Beach	\$99,121	
San Juan Capistrano	\$94,703	
Aliso Viejo	\$94,571	
Laguna Niguel	\$94,075	
Mission Viejo	\$93,678	
Irvine	\$93,258	
Lake Forest	\$89,884	
Laguna Hills	\$87,206	
San Clemente	\$85,179	
Huntington Beach	\$80,453	
Cypress	\$79,603	
Fountain Valley	\$79,559	
Brea	\$79,157	
Orange	\$77,670	
Dana Point	\$77,022	
Placentia	\$75,762	
Orange County	\$73,849	
Tustin	\$69,941	
Fullerton	\$67,112	
Buena Park	\$63,093	
Costa Mesa	\$63,071	
La Habra	\$62,320	
California	\$60,422	
Garden Grove	\$58,819	
Anaheim	\$58,157	
Westminster	\$58,084	
Santa Ana	\$54,273	
Stanton	\$53,208	
United States	\$51,369	
Seal Beach	\$49,187	

2



Unemployment

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of residents age 16 years and older who do not have jobs. Unemployment rates are based upon "place of residence" – where people live, regardless of where they work. Individuals who have more than one job are counted only once.

Why is this Important to Health?

Maintaining employment has protective health benefits. Those who lose their jobs are not only more likely to have financial difficulties, but are more likely than employed people to report poorer health, depression, anxiety, insomnia and limitations to their social activities (6, 7). For some, these problems may come at the same time a worker is losing employment-based health insurance (8). Unemployed people are also more likely to have or develop chronic health conditions that create barriers to going back to work (6). In the case of teens and young adults, those without jobs are significantly more likely to die early from any cause than their employed peers (9). A national study by Strully found that job loss may result in an over 50% increase in the likelihood of fair to poor health among workers and, among those initially well, increase the risk of a new health problem by over 80% (8).

Resources

• The Economic Development Administration offers research and tools of the trade for economic development. The National Association of Workforce Boards provides numerous promising practices for skill development.

Location	Percent of Labor Force that is Unemployed by City, 2009	
Aliso Viejo	4.8%	
Los Alamitos	5.0%	
Villa Park	5.1%	
Newport Beach	5.6%	
Rancho Santa Margarita	5.8%	
Yorba Linda	6.0%	
Brea	6.2%	
Lake Forest	6.2%	
Dana Point	6.5%	
Mission Viejo	6.5%	
Laguna Beach	6.6%	
Seal Beach	6.6%	
Irvine	6.8%	
Laguna Niguel	7.0%	
Huntington Beach	7.3%	
San Clemente	7.3%	
Fountain Valley	7.5%	
Laguna Hills	7.6%	
Placentia	8.0%	
San Juan Capistrano	8.0%	
Costa Mesa	8.1%	
Orange	8.3%	
Tustin	8.8%	
Orange County	9.0%	
United States	9.3%	
Cypress	9.5%	
La Palma	10.0%	
Westminster	10.0%	
Fullerton	10.1%	
La Habra	10.1%	
Buena Park	11.2%	
Garden Grove	11.2%	
California	11.4%	
Anaheim	11.5%	
Laguna Woods	12.3%	
Santa Ana	14.1%	
Stanton	14.4%	

Source: California Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information (www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/); U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, Local Area Unemployment Statistics, 2009 www.bls.gov/)



Poverty Among Adults

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of adults 18 years of age and older living below the federal poverty level, as determined by the U.S. Census Bureau. Poverty level takes into account family size, but does not consider cost of living.

Why is this Important to Health?

Poverty can negatively affect health in a number of ways. Many harmful health behaviors tend to be more common in people with low income (10, 11, 12). For example, adult smoking is 1.6 times more likely among those living under the federal poverty line (10). Those living in poverty are more likely to suffer from a variety of chronic diseases and are also more likely to have difficulties accessing appropriate health care, resulting in problems with accurate and timely diagnoses (13). As a result, people living in poverty tend to be in poorer health and at increased risk of premature death (11).

Resources

The Urban Institute maintains a library of resources on what works to reduce poverty.

	Location	Percent of Adults Living in
		Poverty by City, 2007-2009
	Yorba Linda	2%
	Rancho Santa Margarita	3%
	Aliso Viejo	3%
	Mission Viejo	4%
	Lake Forest	4%
	Brea	5%
	San Clemente	6%
	Laguna Niguel	6%
	Dana Point	6%
	Huntington Beach	6%
	Cypress	6%
	Seal Beach	6%
	Fountain Valley	6%
	Newport Beach	6%
	Laguna Beach	7%
	Tustin	7%
	San Juan Capistrano	7%
	Orange	7%
	La Habra	8%
	Placentia	8%
	Orange County	9%
	Buena Park	9%
	Laguna Hills	9%
	Irvine	10%
	Fullerton	10%
	Westminster	10%
	Anaheim	10%
	Costa Mesa	10%
	Garden Grove	11%
	California	12%
	United States	12%
	Stanton	12%
	Santa Ana	15%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 2007-2009 (http://factfinder2.census.gov/main.html)



Poverty Among Children

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of children under 18 years of age living below the federal poverty level, as determined by the U.S. Census Bureau. Poverty level takes into account family size, but does not consider cost of living.

Why is this Important to Health?

Children living in poverty are at greater risk for poor health and compromised development, including cognitive, motor, and social-emotional delays (14). They are more likely to be exposed to factors in the household and community that negatively impact key stages of development and less likely to be exposed to environments that promote healthy development (14). Children living in poverty are more likely to have a child as a teen, more likely to engage in high-risk behaviors, more likely to suffer from chronic diseases, and less likely to have access to health care (15). In a review by Wood, children living in poverty were approximately 80% more likely to be in fair or poor health, twice as likely to be hospitalized, 50% more likely to die, and over three times more likely to be exposed to high levels of lead than children who were not poor (15).

Resources

The National Center for Children in Poverty provides research-based policy recommendations for poverty reduction.

The Brookings Institution Metropolitan Opportunity Project offers policy recommendations to enhance the well-being of lower-income families and communities in both cities and suburbs.

The Center for American Progress published the report From Poverty to Prosperity: A National Strategy to Cut Poverty in Half, an outgrowth of their expert taskforce on poverty.

Location	Percent of Children Living in Poverty by City, 2007-2009	
Seal Beach	2%	
Yorba Linda	2%	
Newport Beach	4%	
Aliso Viejo	4%	
Mission Viejo	4%	
Lake Forest	4%	
Rancho Santa Margarita	4%	
Laguna Beach	5%	
Brea	5%	
Fountain Valley	5%	
Laguna Hills	6%	
Irvine	6%	
Laguna Niguel	7%	
Dana Point	8%	
Huntington Beach	8%	
Cypress	8%	
San Clemente	10%	
Buena Park	11%	
Orange	12%	
San Juan Capistrano	12%	
Fullerton	13%	
Tustin	13%	
Orange County	13%	
Westminster	15%	
Costa Mesa	17%	
Placentia	17%	
Garden Grove	17%	
La Habra	18%	
California	19%	
United States	19%	
Anaheim	21%	
Stanton	25%	
Santa Ana	25%	

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 2007-2009 (http://factfinder.census.gov)



Rent Burden

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of households that are spending thirty percent or more of their income on rent.

Why is this Important to Health?

Low housing affordability has been linked to decreased access to a variety of resources. For example, families who must spend a large portion of household income on housing tend to spend less on food, potentially compromising their ability to buy healthy foods (16). A Health Impact Assessment by Thomson et al. (2003) suggested families on a waiting list for rent subsidies are eight times more likely to have poorer growth than children in families receiving rental subsidies (17).

Resources

The Task Force on Community Preventive Services has published reviews of successful strategies to increase access to housing, including rent subsidy programs.

PolicyLink, a research and advocacy organization, has the Affordable Housing Tool Group – a large and varied set of programs and policies related to affordable housing.

Location	Percent of Households Spending 30% or More of Income on Rent by City, 2007-2009	
Newport Beach	41%	
Seal Beach	41%	
Brea	45%	
Irvine	48%	
Aliso Viejo	48%	
Huntington Beach	48%	
Laguna Beach	48%	
United States	50%	
Lake Forest	50%	
Cypress	51%	
Costa Mesa	51%	
San Clemente	51%	
La Habra	52%	
Fountain Valley	53%	
Orange	53%	
Rancho Santa Margarita	55%	
California	55%	
Orange County	55%	
Tustin	55%	
Laguna Niguel	55%	
Stanton	56%	
Yorba Linda	57%	
Santa Ana	56%	
Fullerton	57%	
Buena Park	58%	
Placentia	60%	
Mission Viejo	61%	
Garden Grove	61%	
Anaheim	62%	
San Juan Capistrano	64%	
Dana Point	65%	
Westminster	65%	
Laguna Hills	68%	



Crowded Living Conditions

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of housing units, both owned and rented, which have more than one person per room, the common definition of crowded living conditions.

Why is this Important to Health?

Crowded households – such as two families sharing housing due to economic hardship – can lead to stress caused by lack of privacy, quiet, and having to manage a large number of relationships (18). Living in crowded housing is associated with poor school performance and behavioral problems among children (19). Living in crowded conditions may also facilitate the spread of communicable diseases, such as respiratory infections and tuberculosis (18). For example, in a study by Fonseca et al. (1996) of pneumonia transmission, children living in households with eight or more persons were twice as likely to develop the disease as those living in average sized households of two to four persons (20). Additionally, crowding is associated with low birth weight and asthma, triggered by poor housing conditions, such as moisture damaged walls, mold, and pest problems (21). Finally, living in crowded households is a risk factor for homelessness (22).

Resources

The Task Force on Community Preventive Services has published reviews of what works to increase access to stable housing.

Strategies for preventing homelessness are available through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

	Percent of Households with		
Location	More than One Person per		
	Room by City, 2007-2009		
Seal Beach	0.8%		
Laguna Niguel	1.0%		
Laguna Beach	1.3%		
Dana Point	1.4%		
Yorba Linda	1.5%		
Newport Beach	1.7%		
Huntington Beach	2.6%		
Aliso Viejo	2.9%		
Mission Viejo	3.0%		
San Clemente	3.0%		
United States	3.0%		
Irvine	3.1%		
Fountain Valley	3.3%		
Rancho Santa Margarita	3.4%		
Cypress	4.3%		
Lake Forest	4.4%		
Brea	4.8%		
San Juan Capistrano	5.7%		
Laguna Hills	6.3%		
California	7.9%		
Costa Mesa	8.1%		
Orange County	9.4%		
Placentia	9.4%		
Tustin	9.4%		
Westminster	10.1%		
Orange	10.3%		
Fullerton	11.6%		
Buena Park	11.8%		
La Habra	16.7%		
Garden Grove	16.8%		
Anaheim	17.3%		
Stanton	17.5%		
Santa Ana	34.1%		

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 2007-2009 (http://factfinder.census.gov)



Average Commute Time

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the average time it takes Orange County residents 16 years and older to commute to work.

Why is this Important to Health?

According to the U.S. Census Bureau, Orange County residents spent approximately 34.3 million minutes getting to work in 2010. Almost 38% of Orange County commuters took at least a half hour to get to work. Commute distances and time are associated with environmental impacts and personal well being and health (23). Poor air quality is associated with asthma, cancer, heart diseases, poor birth outcomes, and early death (24). Increased commute times also lead to increased stress, decreased social activity and less time for exercise and physical activity (25). In a study by Frank et al. (2004), each hour spent driving per day may increase risk of obesity by six percent (26).

Resources

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has created a set of resources for the implementation of smart growth principles, including guidelines and tools. These principles emphasize proximity of jobs to homes, concentrated development, non-motorized and public transportation, and reinforce a strong sense of place. Additionally, the U.S. Centers for Disease Control have published "Recommendations for Improving Health through Transportation Policy," which includes evidence based suggestions for promoting non-motorized transportation and public transit, with an eye from improving public health.

Location	Average Commute Time in Minutes by City, 2007-2009
Costa Mesa	22
Irvine	22
Newport Beach	23
Tustin	23
Santa Ana	25
Fountain Valley	25
United States	25
Fullerton	26
Orange	26
Mission Viejo	26
Aliso Viejo	26
Laguna Hills	26
Lake Forest	26
Huntington Beach	26
San Juan Capistrano	26
Orange County	26
Laguna Niguel	27
Buena Park	27
Garden Grove	27
Westminster	27
Anaheim	27
San Clemente	27
Placentia	27
California	27
Dana Point	28
Cypress	28
Rancho Santa Margarita	28
La Habra	28
Stanton	29
Seal Beach	29
Brea	29
Laguna Beach	30
Yorba Linda	31

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 2007-2009 (http://factfinder.census.gov)



Commuters Driving Alone

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of Orange County residents 16 years and older who drive alone to work.

Why is this Important to Health?

According to the U.S. Census Bureau, approximately 78% of Orange County's 1.3 million commuters typically drove alone to work in 2010. Driving alone rather than ride-sharing or – better yet – commuting by biking, walking or public transportation – means more vehicles on the road, which reduces air quality. As stated previously, poor air quality is associated with asthma, cancer, heart diseases, poor birth outcomes, and early death (27). Commuters who drive to work alone are less likely to walk or ride their bikes, which are both important sources of physical activity (28, 29). The use of public transit, such as buses, is known to increase the daily physical activity of transit commuters, who often walk or bicycle between bus stops and their jobs or homes (30).

Resources

The U.S. Centers for Disease Control has published "Recommendations for Improving Health through Transportation Policy," which includes evidence-based suggestions for promoting non-motorized transportation and public transit, with a goal of improving public health.

L	ocation	Percent of Commuters Driv- ing Alone by City, 2007-2009	
S	Santa Ana	67%	
C	California	73%	
C	Costa Mesa	73%	
A	Anaheim	74%	
S	Stanton	75%	
ι	Jnited States	76%	
C	Garden Grove	76%	
h	rvine	76%	
S	San Juan Capistrano	77%	
S	San Clemente	77%	
Т	「ustin	78%	
C	Drange County	78%	
L	a Habra	78%	
C	Drange	78%	
B	Buena Park	79%	
L	aguna Hills	79%	
F	Fullerton	79%	
A	Aliso Viejo	80%	
P	Placentia	81%	
L	aguna Beach	81%	
L	aguna Niguel	81%	
L	ake Forest	81%	
H	Huntington Beach	82%	
C	Dana Point	82%	
Ν	Newport Beach	82%	
V	Westminster	82%	
F	Rancho Santa Margarita	82%	
F	ountain Valley	83%	
S	Seal Beach	84%	
Ν	Aission Viejo	84%	
C	Cypress	84%	
Y	/orba Linda	84%	
B	Brea	85%	



REFERENCES

Median Household Income

- Regidor E. Social determinants of health: A veil that hides socioeconomic position and its relation with health. J Epidemiol Community Health 2006; 60:896-901.
- 2. Engle PL and Black MM. The effect of poverty of child development and educational outcomes. Ann. N.Y. Acad. Sci. 2008; 1136:243-256.
- 3. Marmot M. The influence of income on health: Views of an Epidemiologist. Health Affairs 2002; 21(2):31-46.
- 4. Wood D. Effect of child and family poverty on child health in the United States. Pediatrics 2003; 112(3):707-711.
- 5. Konda N, et al. Income inequality, mortality, and self rated health: Meta-analysis of multilevel studies. BMJ 2009; 339:b4471.

Unemployment Rate

- 6. Mathers CD and Schofield DJ. Health consequences of unemployment: The evidence. Med J Aust 1998; 168:178-182.
- 7. Morrell S, et al. Unemployment and young people's health. Med J Aust 1998; 168:236-240.
- 8. Strully KW. Job losses and health in the U.S. labor market. Demography 2009; 46(2):221–246.0
- 9. Davila EP, et al. Young adults, mortality, and employment. Journal of Occupational & Environmental Medicine 2010; 52(5):501-504.

Poverty Rate (Adults)

- 10. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. CDC Health Disparities and Inequalities Report United States, 2011. MMWR 2011; 60(Suppl):1-113.
- 11. Marmot M. The influence of income on health: Views of an Epidemiologist. Health Affairs 2002; 21(2):31-46.
- 12. Wood D. Effect of child and family poverty on child health in the United States. Pediatrics 2003; 112(3):707-711.
- 13. Regidor E. Social determinants of health: A veil that hides socioeconomic position and its relation with health. J Epidemiol Community Health 2006; 60:896-901.

Poverty Rate (Children)

- 14. Engle PL and Black MM. The effect of poverty of child development and educational outcomes. Ann. N.Y. Acad. Sci. 2008; 1136:243-256.
- 15. Wood D. Effect of child and family poverty on child health in the United States. Pediatrics 2003; 112(3):707-711.

Rent Burden

- 16. Krieger J and Higgins DL. Housing and health: Time again for public health action. Am J Public Health 2002; 92:758–768.
- 17. Thomson H, et al. Health impact assessment of housing improvements: Incorporating research evidence. J Epidemiol Community Health 2003; 57:11–16.

Crowded Living Conditions

- 18. Krieger J and Higgins DL. Housing and health: Time again for public health action. Am J Public Health 2002; 92:758–768.
- 19. Leventhal T and Newman S. Housing and child development. Children and Youth Services Review 2010; 32(9):1165-1174.
- 20. Fonseca W, et al. Risk factors for childhood pneumonia among the urban poor in Fortaleza, Brazil: a case--control study. Bull World Health Organ. 1996; 74(2):199–208.
- 21. Newman S. Does housing matter for poor families? A critical summary of research and issues still to be resolved. Journal of Policy Analysis and Management 2008; 27(4): 895-925.
- 22. Entner WBR, et al. Factors associated with doubled-up housing—a common precursor to homelessness. The Social Service Review 1998; 72(1):92-111.

Average Commute Times

- 23. Frumkin H. Urban sprawl and public health. Public Health Reports 2002; 117:201-217.
- 24. Ren C and Tong S. Health effects of ambient air pollution recent research development and contemporary methodological challenges. Environmental Health 2008; 7:56.
- 25. Besser LM, et al. Commute time and social capital in the U.S. Am J Prev Med. 2008; 34(3):207-211.
- 26. Frank LD, et al. Obesity relationships with community design, physical activity, and time spent in cars. Am J Prev Med. 2004; 27(2):87-96.

Commuters Driving Alone

- 27. Ren C and Tong S. Health effects of ambient air pollution recent research development and contemporary methodological challenges. Environmental Health 2008; 7:56.
- 28. Lee IM and Buchner DM. The importance of walking to public health. Med Sci Sports Exerc. 2008; 40(7S):S512-S518.
- 29. Yang L, et al. Interventions to promote cycling: Systematic review. BMJ 2010; 341:c5293.
- 30. Besser LM and Dannenberg AL. Walking to public transit: Steps to help meet physical activity recommendations. Am J Prev Med 2005; 29(4):273-280.

Educational Health

Children Attending Preschool

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of children ages three and four who are enrolled in public or private preschools.

Why is this Important to Health?

Early childhood education is known to promote children's development including their intellectual skills and performance in school. Children's readiness for school when they start kindergarten is linked to future school success (1). Research shows that students who start school significantly behind their peers may never close the readiness gap; instead the gap tends to widen as they move through school grades (1). Early academic problems increase the chances of truancy, drop out, risky health behaviors, and delinquency (2, 3). In a study that followed a group of young children to adulthood, those who attended preschool had a high school graduation rate that was about eight percentage points higher than those who did not attend preschool, even after controlling for other factors (3). Educational attainment is then associated with income and a variety of health behaviors, such as smoking, diet, physical activity, early sexual activity, and teen pregnancy (2, 3, 4).

Resources

The U.S. Department of Education's Institute of Education Sciences runs a "What Works Clearinghouse" with research reviews on topics in education, including the area of early childhood education.

	Percent of Three and Four	
Location	Year Olds Attending	
	Preschool by City, 2007-2009	
Seal Beach	79%	
Dana Point	71%	
Irvine	69%	
Aliso Viejo	68%	
Huntington Beach	67%	
Laguna Beach	67%	
Fountain Valley	67%	
Newport Beach	65%	
Cypress	60%	
Rancho Santa Margarita	59%	
Yorba Linda	58%	
San Clemente	58%	
Laguna Niguel	56%	
Placentia	56%	
Brea	55%	
Mission Viejo	54%	
Tustin	54%	
Costa Mesa	53%	
Westminster	53%	
Buena Park	52%	
Lake Forest	51%	
California	50%	
San Juan Capistrano	49%	
Orange County	49%	
United States	48%	
Orange	47%	
Garden Grove	46%	
La Habra	44%	
Fullerton	44%	
Stanton	41%	
Laguna Hills	41%	
Anaheim	37%	
Santa Ana	32%	

20



English Learners

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of public school students in kindergarten through grade 12 who are English Learners. Students are considered English Learners if they are not proficient in listening, speaking, reading, or writing in English.

Why is this Important to Health?

English Learners are less likely to perform well in school and less likely to graduate from high school or attend college compared to their English-proficient peers (5, 6, 7). When they do graduate, approximately 63% of English Learners are still below standard curriculum levels compared to 25% of non-English Learner graduates (7). In a national study by Wong et al., those without a high school diploma had 3.5 times more years of potential life lost due to premature death compared to those with a diploma (8).

Resources

The U.S. Department of Education's Institute of Education Sciences runs a "What Works Clearinghouse" with research reviews on topics in education, including education among English Learners.

Location	Percent of Students Desig- nated English Learner by School District, 2009/10	
	K-6 th Grade	7-12 th Grade
Laguna Beach Unified	1%	2%
Los Alamitos Unified	4%	1%
Huntington Beach City Elementary	8%	N/A
Huntington Beach Union High*	N/A	12%
Fountain Valley Elementary	12%	N/A
Capistrano Unified	15%	7%
Brea-Olinda Unified	19%	31%
Saddleback Valley Unified	19%	8%
Irvine Unified	21%	8%
Placentia-Yorba Linda Unified	22%	8%
Cypress Elementary	23%	N/A
Ocean View	27%	N/A
California	31%	15%
Newport-Mesa Unified	33%	20%
Tustin Unified	34%	17%
Orange Unified	34%	17%
Fullerton Elementary	35%	N/A
Fullerton Joint Union High*	N/A	18%
Centralia Elementary	36%	N/A
Orange County	38%	18%
La Habra City Elementary	45%	N/A
Savanna Elementary	46%	N/A
Buena Park Elementary	50%	N/A
Anaheim City	57%	N/A
Anaheim Union High	N/A	23%
Garden Grove Unified	58%	31%
Magnolia Elementary	59%	N/A
Westminster Elementary	60%	N/A
Santa Ana Unified	72%	36%

*Fullerton Joint High School includes 7-8 graders from La Habra City, Buena Park and Fullerton Elementary school districts; Huntington Beach Union High includes 7-8 graders from Fountain Valley, Huntington Beach City, Ocean View and Westminster school districts.

(N/A – not applicable)



High School Graduation

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of high school students who graduate within four years. This calculation is based on available data and is used in annual yearly progress and No Child Left Behind reporting, but may overestimate true graduation rates.

Why is this Important to Health?

Due in part to the economic benefits of education (9), high school graduates are less likely to die from a number of causes compared to those without a diploma, including heart disease, motor vehicle death, and homicide (10). High school graduates may be less likely to engage in behaviors harmful to health, such as smoking (11). A review by Fiscella and Kitzman suggested a person with a high school diploma can expect 10 additional years of healthy life than a person with less than 9 years of education (12).

Resources

The U.S. Department of Education's Institute of Education Sciences runs a "What Works Clearinghouse" with research reviews on topics in education, including dropout prevention. Additionally, the U.S. Department of Education funds the National High School Center at the American Institutes for Research, which publishes a collection of research and resources to improve high schools.

Location	Percent of Students Graduat- ing in Four Years by School District, 2008/09
Laguna Beach Unified	98%
Los Alamitos Unified	97%
Capistrano Unified	97%
Irvine Unified	97%
Tustin Unified	96%
Brea-Olinda Unified	95%
Saddleback Valley Unified	94%
Huntington Beach Union High	94%
Fullerton Joint Union High	94%
Placentia-Yorba Linda Unified	93%
Newport-Mesa Unified	93%
Garden Grove Unified	91%
Orange Unified	91%
Orange County	88%
Anaheim Union High	85%
Santa Ana Unified	85%
California	79%

Source: California Department of Education, DataQuest 2008/09 (http://www.ed-data.k12.ca.us/welcome.asp)



Adults with High School Diploma

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of residents 25 years of age and older who have a high school diploma or its equivalent.

Why is this Important to Health?

High school graduates have lower death rates from all causes and are less likely to suffer from heart disease, motor vehicle death, homicide, high cholesterol, and other health issues (13). They may also be less likely to engage in behaviors harmful to their health (14). In national surveillance by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, those without a high school diploma are approximately five times more likely to smoke than those with a graduate degree (15). Additionally, among non-elderly adults, those without a high school diploma are over 1.5 times more likely to lack health insurance than those with a diploma (16).

Resources

The U.S. Department of Education's Institute of Education Sciences runs a "What Works Clearinghouse" with research reviews on topics in education. The National Center for Adult Learning and Literacy has a clearinghouse with research reviews on topics in adult learning and literacy. The Office of Vocational and Adult Education provides information and resources related to adult education.

Location	Percent of Residents Ages 25 and Over with a High School
Laguna Beach	
Newport Beach	98%
	98%
Irvine	96%
Aliso Vieio	95%
Yorba Linda	95%
Rancho Santa Margarita	95%
Seal Beach	95%
San Clemente	94%
Dana Point	94%
Mission Vieio	94%
Huntington Beach	93%
Lake Forest	93%
Laguna Hills	93%
Brea	92%
Cypress	91%
Fountain Valley	89%
Fullerton	85%
Costa Mesa	85%
Tustin	85%
United States	85%
San Juan Capistrano	84%
Placentia	84%
Orange County	83%
Orange	82%
California	81%
Buena Park	80%
La Habra	79%
Westminster	75%
Anaheim	73%
Garden Grove	71%
Stanton	67%
Santa Ana	51%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 2007-2009 (http://factfinder.census.gov)



REFERENCES

Children Attending Preschool

- 1. Engle PL and Black MM. The effect of poverty of child development and educational outcomes. Ann. N.Y. Acad. Sci. 2008; 1136:243-256.
- 2. Fiscella K and Kitzman H. Disparities in academic achievement and health: The intersection of child education and health policy. Pediatrics 2009; 123; 1073-1080.
- 3. Reynolds AJ, et al. Effects of a school-based, early childhood intervention on adult health and well-being. Arch Pediatr Adolesc Med. 2007; 161(8):730-739.
- 4. Winkleby MA, et al. Socioeconomic status and health: How education, income, and occupation contribute to risk factors for cardiovascular disease. American Journal of Public Health 1992:82(6):816-820.

English Learners

- 5. California Department of Education. Ed-Data System, Education Data Partnership: Accessed 2/2011. (http://www.ed-data.k12.ca.us/Pages/Home.aspx)
- 6. Kutner M, et al. Literacy in everyday life. Results from the 2003 National Assessment of Adult literacy (NCES 2007–480). U.S.Department of Education.Washington, DC: National Center for Education Statistics, 2007.
- Nord C., et al. The Nation's Report Card: America's High School Graduates (NCES 2011-462). U.S. Department of Education, National Center for Education Statistics. Washington, DC: U.S. Government Printing Office. 2011.
- 8. Wong MD, et al. Contribution of major diseases to disparities in mortality. N Engl J Med 2002; 347:1585-1592.

High School Graduation

- Snyder TD and Dillow SA. Digest of education statistics 2009 (NCES 2010-013). National Center for Education Statistics, Institute of Education Sciences, U.S. Department of Education. Washington, DC, 2010.
- 10. Hillemeier M, et al. Measuring contextual characteristics for community health. Health Services Research 2003; 38(6.2):1645-1717.
- 11. Winkleby MA, et al. Socioeconomic status and health: How education, income, and occupation contribute to risk factors for cardiovascular disease. American Journal of Public Health 1992:82(6):816-820.
- 12. Fiscella K and Kitzman H. Disparities in academic achievement and health: The intersection of child education and health policy. Pediatrics 2009; 123; 1073-1080.

Adults with High School Diploma

- 13. Hillemeier M, et al. Measuring contextual characteristics for community health. Health Services Research 2003; 38(6.2):1645-1717.
- 14. Winkleby MA, et al. Socioeconomic status and health: How education, income, and occupation contribute to risk factors for cardiovascular disease. American Journal of Public Health 1992:82(6):816-820.
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Vital Signs: Current Cigarette Smoking Among Adults Aged ≥ 18 Years – United States, 2009. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report 2010; 59(35):1135-40.
- 16. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Health disparities and inequities report United States, 2011. MMWR 2011; 60(S):1-114.

Community Health

Healthy Food Availability

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the number of healthy food outlets in a community per 1,000 residents. Healthy food outlets are considered any grocery store with four or more employees or fruit and/or vegetable vendor.

Why is this Important to Health?

The presence or absence of nearby vendors that sell healthy foods may affect a person's likelihood of eating fruits and vegetables, meeting nutritional recommendations, and their risk of becoming obese (1, 2, 3). According to a recent 2009 review by Larson et al., the majority of studies on the subject show a link between living in neighborhoods with healthy food access and healthier food intakes (1). Additionally, several studies link healthy food environments and obesity, including a nationwide study in which metropolitan residents living far from supermarkets were 24% more likely to be obese than those who lived close to them (3). Obesity is the second leading preventable cause of death in the United States (4). Healthy eating not only helps people get to and maintain a healthy weight, but it also offers protection against illnesses such as heart disease and certain cancers (5).

Resources

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention provides recommendations for the prevention of obesity through community based strategies, including several about increasing access to healthy foods.

The nonprofit Public Health Law and Policy provides excellent summaries on how to increase access to healthy foods.

(Data not available by city)



Park Availability

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the approximate number of acres of parks in a community per 1,000 residents.

Why is this Important to Health?

The number and proximity of parks in a neighborhood can raise fitness levels of residents (6). In a review of the scientific literature by the Task Force on Community Preventive Services, it was found that access to places for physical activity increased levels of exercise by nearly 14% (6). Physical activity is a key factor in weight loss, maintaining a healthy weight, and preventing obesity – the second leading preventable cause of death in the United States (7). Those who are physically active tend to live longer than those who are inactive and they are at reduced risk for cardiovascular diseases, certain cancers, diabetes, depression, and a number of other significant health problems (8). Lack of access to parks and places for physical activity is a particular problem for residents of low income communities, who may already be at increased risk of obesity and related chronic diseases.

Resources

The Task Force on Community Preventive Services conducted a formal review of studies on the creation of, or enhanced access to, places for physical activity.

The Trust for Public Land has published guides on how to create and finance quality park systems.

Location	Numbers of Acres of Parks per 1,000 Residents by City, 2011
Laguna Beach	69
Rancho Santa Margarita	48
Irvine	38
Yorba Linda	37
Lake Forest	35
San Juan Capistrano	33
Newport Beach	32
Aliso Viejo	19
Laguna Niguel	16
Fountain Valley	12
Brea	12
Dana Point	10
Mission Viejo	9
Fullerton	8
Costa Mesa	8
San Clemente	7
Orange	6
Huntington Beach	6
Laguna Woods	5
Seal Beach	5
Anaheim	4
Tustin	3
Laguna Hills	3
Los Alamitos	3
La Palma	2
Placentia	2
La Habra	2
Cypress	2
Buena Park	2
Santa Ana	1
Garden Grove	1
Westminster	1
Stanton	1
Villa Park	0

Source: GreenInfo Network, California Protected Areas Database, version 1.7; U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 U.S. Census.


Alcohol Outlet Density

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the number of alcohol outlets per 1,000 residents. Alcohol outlets include liquor stores, convenience stores, supermarkets, bars, restaurants, or other retailers who sell alcoholic beverages.

Why is this Important to Health?

Alcohol consumption is the third greatest preventable cause of death in the United States (9). Alcohol outlets may negatively affect both low and higher income communities. High alcohol outlet density has been associated with higher overall alcohol consumption, increasing both the frequency of alcohol use and the amount of alcohol consumed per drinking session (10). Additionally, studies have linked neighborhoods with higher alcohol outlet density with higher rates of alcohol-related pedestrian collisions, alcohol-related motor vehicle crashes, and alcohol related motor vehicle crash fatalities (10). It has been estimated that for every 10% increase in the number of alcohol outlets within an area, a 1.7 to 2.1% increase in violent crime can be expected (10).

Resources

The Task Force on Community Preventive Services has published a review of what works to prevent excessive alcohol consumption, which includes the regulation of alcohol outlet density.

The Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration's Center for Substance Abuse Prevention has also published a guide on environmental approaches to reducing problems related to alcohol availability.

Location	Number of Alcohol Outlets per 1,000 Residents by City, 2009
Laguna Woods	0.6
Aliso Viejo	0.7
Villa Park	0.8
Rancho Santa Margarita	0.9
Yorba Linda	0.9
Santa Ana	1.1
San Juan Capistrano	1.2
La Palma	1.3
Mission Viejo	1.3
Irvine	1.3
Laguna Niguel	1.4
Buena Park	1.4
Placentia	1.4
Anaheim	1.4
Cypress	1.6
Garden Grove	1.6
Orange County	1.7
Westminster	1.7
Huntington Beach	1.8
Orange	1.9
La Habra	1.9
San Clemente	2.0
Fullerton	2.0
Fountain Valley	2.0
Tustin	2.1
Laguna Hills	2.2
Los Alamitos	2.2
Stanton	2.2
Brea	2.5
Seal Beach	2.6
Dana Point	2.7
Costa Mesa	2.9
Lake Forest	3.0
Newport Beach	3.6
Laguna Beach	4.5

Source: California Department of Alcohol Beverage Control (www.abc.ca.gov/)



35

Child Abuse and Neglect

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the number of children under 18 years of age with child abuse or neglect allegations within a year per 1,000 children.

Why is this Important to Health?

Victims of child abuse and neglect experience a breadth of physical, psychological, and behavioral consequences. Abuse or neglect during crucial periods of development can result in psychological problems such as cognitive delays and emotional difficulties (11). Psychological problems are frequently expressed as aggression and high-risk behaviors, making victims of abuse more likely to smoke, abuse alcohol or drugs, or overeat (12, 13). Such behaviors can, in turn, result in long-term physical health problems such as sexually transmitted diseases, cancer, and obesity (13). Reporting abuse may represent the only opportunity a child and family have to receive outside help to end maltreatment and the cycle of abuse.

Resources

The Children's Bureau within the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services provides resources and strategies for the prevention of child abuse and neglect.

The Promising Practices Network provides tools and strategies for reducing child abuse and neglect. (Data not available by city from this data source)

Data Source: Child Abuse Allegations: California Department of Social Services: http://cssr.berkeley.edu/ucb_childwelfare/Maps.aspx



37

Juvenile Probationers

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the number of juveniles (ages 10 through 17) on probation for a violation of the law per 1,000 juveniles. Juveniles on probation are minors who were arrested and referred to the Orange County Probation Department for further criminal justice action.

Why is this Important to Health?

Delinquent youth are more likely to report poorer health and suffer from more chronic conditions than their non-delinquent peers (14). Conversely, adolescents who suffer frequently from minor health problems and who lack resources to afford proper medical care report engaging in more delinquent acts than their healthy peers (15).

Resources

U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention offers the Model Programs Guide, with over 200 evidencebased programs for juvenile justice practitioners.

Location	Number of Juvenile Proba- tioners per 1,000 Juveniles by City, May 2010
Villa Park	3.6
Yorba Linda	4.0
La Palma	4.4
Los Alamitos	5.0
Irvine	5.0
Aliso Viejo	6.0
Seal Beach	6.4
Laguna Beach	7.0
Laguna Niguel	7.0
Mission Viejo	7.4
Rancho Santa Margarita	7.9
Fountain Valley	8.6
Laguna Hills	8.6
Newport Beach	8.9
Dana Point	10.3
Cypress	10.6
Brea	10.9
Huntington Beach	11.0
San Clemente	11.0
Lake Forest	13.9
San Juan Capistrano	14.0
Placentia	14.2
Westminster	15.9
Orange County	17.0
Costa Mesa	18.5
Orange	18.9
Buena Park	20.9
Garden Grove	21.5
Fullerton	21.9
La Habra	24.7
Anaheim	26.4
Tustin	27.3
Santa Ana	29.3
Stanton	31.0
Laguna Woods	N/A

Source: Orange County Probation Department



Crime Rate

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the number of violent crimes reported to law enforcement per 100,000 residents.

Why is this Important to Health?

Victims of crime, especially violent crime, often experience severe psychological distress and mental health problems. Fear of crime—without actually being a victim—can also lead to stress, depression, and sleeping difficulties. Fear of crime may also contribute to becoming overweight because those who fear going out in their neighborhood may be more sedentary (16, 17).

Resources

The National Criminal Justice Reference Service under the U.S. Department of Justice offers many resources, tools and articles in the Crime Prevention area of its website.

Location	Number of Violent Crimes per 100,000 by City, 2009
Cities \geq 100,000 population	
Irvine	71
Orange	117
Huntington Beach	195
Costa Mesa	276
Garden Grove	326
Anaheim	352
Fullerton	397
Santa Ana	509
Cities < 100,000 population	
Laguna Niguel	74
Yorba Linda	77
Aliso Viejo	89
Mission Viejo	100
San Clemente	110
Laguna Hills	123
Tustin	127
Dana Point	131
Lake Forest	144
Newport Beach	156
Brea	176
San Juan Capistrano	181
Placentia	188
Cypress	189
Fountain Valley	209
Seal Beach	211
Los Alamitos	274
Westminster	298
Buena Park	311
La Habra	338
Laguna Beach	358
Stanton	359
Rancho Santa Margarita	Unstable
Laguna Woods	Unstable
La Palma	Unstable
Villa Park	Unstable

Source: Federal Bureau of Investigation, Uniform Crime Reporting Program, 2009 (www2.fbi.gov/ucr/cius2009/offenses/index.html)



REFERENCES

Healthy Food Availability

- 1. Larson NI, et al., Neighborhood environments: Disparities in access to healthy foods in the U.S. Am J Prev Med 2009; 36(1):74–81.
- 2. Michimi A and Wimberly MC. Associations of supermarket accessibility with obesity and fruit and vegetable consumption in the conterminous United States. Int J Health Geogr. 2010; 9:49.
- 3. Morland K, et al. Supermarkets, other food stores, and obesity. The atherosclerosis risk in communities study. Am J Prev Med 2006; 30:333–9.
- 4. Mokdad AH, et al. Actual causes of death in the United States, 2000. JAMA 2004; 291:1238-1245. Correction JAMA 2005; 293(3):298.
- 5. American Institute for Cancer Research/World Cancer Research Fund. Policy and Action for Cancer Prevention. Food, Nutrition, and Physical Activity: a Global Perspective. Washington DC: AICR, 2009

Park Availability

- 6. Kahn EB, et al. The effectiveness of interventions to increase physical activity: a systematic review. Am J Prev Med 2002; 22(4S):73-107.
- 7. Mokdad AH, et al. Actual causes of death in the United States, 2000. JAMA 2004;291:1238-1245. Correction JAMA 2005; 293(3):298.
- 8. Jakicic JM and Otto AD. Physical activity considerations for the treatment and prevention of obesity. Am J Clin Nutr 2005; 82(S):226S–229S.

Alcohol Outlet Density

- 9. Mokdad AH, et al. Actual causes of death in the United States, 2000. JAMA 2004; 291(10):1238-1245.
- 10. Popova S, et al. Hours and days of sale and density of alcohol outlets: Impacts on alcohol consumption and damage: A systematic review. Alcohol & Alcohol-ism 2009;44(5);500–516.

Child Abuse and Neglect

- 11. Barth RP, et al. Developmental status and early intervention service needs of maltreated children. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Planning and Evaluation, 2007.
- 12. Hagele DM. The impact of maltreatment on the developing child. NC Med J 2005; 66(5):356-359.
- 13. Springer KW, et al. Long-term physical and mental health consequences of childhood physical abuse: Results from a large population-based sample of men and women. Child Abuse Negl. 2007; 31(5):517–530.

Juvenile Probationers

- 14. Stogner J and Gibson C. Healthy, wealthy, and wise: Incorporating health issues as a source of strain in Agnew's general strain theory. Journal of Criminal Justice 2010; 38(6):1150 1159.
- U.S. Department of Justice. Juvenile justice bulletin: Substance use and delinquent behavior among serious adolescent offenders. U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention. Accessed 12/2010. (https://www.ncjrs.gov/pdffiles1/ojjdp/232790. pdf)

Crime Rate

- 16. Fish J, et al. Association of perceived neighborhood safety on body mass index. American Journal of Public Health 2010;100(11):2296-2303.
- 17. Robinson F and Keithley J. The impacts of crime on health and health services: A literature review. Health, Risk and Society 2000;2(3):online.
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). Ten leading causes of death, United States – 2008. WISQARS. Office of Statistics and Programming, National Center for Injury Prevention and Control; Accessed 12/2010. (http://www.cdc. gov/injury/wisqars/leading_causes_death.html)

Physical Health

Children with Health Insurance

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of children under 18 years of age who are covered by health insurance.

Why is this Important to Health?

Children with health insurance are more likely to have a place for regular medical care, more likely to visit their doctor, more likely to use health care services, and less likely to use an emergency room as their primary source of medical care than children who are not covered by health insurance (1). Insured children are also at lower risk of unnecessary hospitalization and are more likely to be correctly diagnosed (2). Access to health care is particularly important for economically disadvantaged children, who may be more likely to suffer from common medical and developmental problems, such as asthma or learning disabilities (1).

Resources

The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services operates a website called Insure Kids Now! that provides a clearinghouse of information for parents and professionals on how to connect children to medical insurance.

Locatio	on	Percent of Children Under 18 with Health Insurance by City, 2008-2010
Laguna Be	each	99%
Rancho Sa	inta Margarita	97%
Newport E	Beach	97%
Fountain \	/alley	97%
Brea		97%
Mission Vi	ejo	97%
Dana Poin	t	95%
Irvine		95%
Yorba Lind	la	95%
San Cleme	ente	95%
Seal Beach	ו	95%
Huntingto	on Beach	94%
Placentia		94%
Laguna Hi	lls	94%
Laguna Ni	guel	93%
Lake Fores	st	93%
Aliso Viejo)	93%
United Sta	ites	91%
California		91%
Westmins	ter	90%
Tustin		90%
Orange Co	ounty	90%
Cypress		89%
Buena Par	k	89%
Garden Gr	ove	89%
Orange		88%
Costa Mes	a	88%
La Habra		88%
Anaheim		88%
Fullerton		87%
San Juan (Capistrano	86%
Stanton		85%
Santa Ana		82%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 2008-2010 (http://factfinder2.census.gov)



Children with Medi-Cal

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the number of children per 1,000 children under 18 who are enrolled in Medi-Cal. Medi-Cal is California's Medicaid, a public health insurance program providing free or low cost health care services for low-income individuals.

Why is this Important to Health?

Medi-Cal as insurance coverage is strongly related to better health outcomes when it makes health care affordable and helps consumers use care appropriately. Having health insurance improves health outcomes by helping people obtain regular and ongoing health care including preventive and screening services, prescription drug benefits, mental health and other services, and primary care outside of the emergency room (3).

Uninsured young children have lower immunization rates than insured children. Uninsured children are also 70 percent less likely than insured children to receive medical care for common childhood conditions such as a sore throat, or for emergencies such as a ruptured appendix (4). When hospitalized, uninsured children are at greater risk of dying than children with insurance (2).

Resources

The Kaiser Commission on Medicaid and the Uninsured maintains a clearinghouse of information on potential policy solutions to covering the uninsured in the United States, including children. Information about Medi-Cal and how to apply can be found at Orange County Social Services/Medi-Cal and California Medi-Cal.

Location	Number of Children with Medi-Cal per 1,000 Children by City, 2009
Villa Park	31
Yorba Linda	52
Seal Beach	53
Newport Beach	55
Laguna Beach	57
Rancho Santa Margarita	65
Irvine	67
Aliso Viejo	70
Laguna Niguel	78
Mission Viejo	83
La Palma	108
Brea	108
Dana Point	120
San Clemente	131
Los Alamitos	133
Fountain Valley	133
Cypress	133
Huntington Beach	146
Laguna Hills	147
Laguna Woods	171
San Juan Capistrano	176
Lake Forest	208
Placentia	244
Orange County	253
Fullerton	256
Tustin	259
Orange	270
Buena Park	275
Costa Mesa	281
La Habra	294
Stanton	335
Westminster	349
Garden Grove	379
Anaheim	391
Santa Ana	490

Source: Orange County Social Services Agency



Adults with Health Insurance

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of adults between ages 18 and 65 who have health insurance.

Why is this Important to Health?

Individuals who are insured tend to have better access to health care, and therefore have better health and live longer than those who do not. For individuals without health insurance, health problems and disease tend to be identified later and they are less likely to receive good treatment (5). In addition, there likely will be a negative financial burden placed upon uninsured individuals after a catastrophic illness. About half of personal bankruptcies are caused by medical problems (5).

Resources

The Kaiser Commission on Medicaid and the Uninsured maintains a clearinghouse of information on potential policy solutions to covering the uninsured in the United States.

Location	Percent of Adults with Health Insurance by City, 2008-2010
Rancho Santa Margarita	91%
Seal Beach	91%
Yorba Linda	91%
Laguna Beach	90%
Mission Viejo	90%
Newport Beach	90%
Laguna Niguel	89%
Irvine	89%
Lake Forest	88%
Aliso Viejo	88%
San Clemente	87%
Brea	87%
Fountain Valley	85%
Laguna Hills	85%
Dana Point	84%
Huntington Beach	83%
Cypress	83%
United States	80%
Orange County	77%
Placentia	77%
Westminster	77%
California	76%
San Juan Capistrano	76%
Fullerton	74%
Orange	74%
Tustin	74%
Buena Park	73%
Costa Mesa	72%
La Habra	71%
Garden Grove	70%
Anaheim	69%
Stanton	64%
Santa Ana	55%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 2008-2010 (http://factfinder.census.gov)



Access to Health Care Providers

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the number of residents per physician, including primary, mental, and dental care providers.

Why is this Important to Health?

Communities with more physicians per resident tend to have greater access to a range of health care services and better health than communities with fewer physicians (6). Having more doctors in a community has also been shown to increase life expectancy for the population as a whole (7).

Resources

The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Health Resources and Services Administration funds the Health Workforce Information Center, which is a comprehensive online resource library containing information on health workforce programs and funding sources; health care workforce data, research, and policies; and educational opportunities and models aimed at improving the health care workforce. Data for this indicator are gathered according to medical service study area (see map). Data is not available by city.



Avoidable Emergency Department Visits

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of emergency department visits made by residents, which were non-urgent, avoidable and more appropriately treated in a primary care setting.

Why is this Important to Health?

Primary care has been shown to improve overall health, help prevent illness and death, and reduce differences in health across a community (8). Emergency care is more expensive, lacks patient follow up, and does not provide preventive care. Studies show that hospital stays related to emergency care are longer than hospital stays tied to primary care.

Emergency department treatment of non-urgent conditions, as well as avoidable visits better treated in a primary care setting, result in an inefficient use of emergency departments that may lead to overcrowding (9).

Resources

Alternative sources of care such as urgent care centers, clinics, preventive services, and/or dial-a-nurse hotlines can be developed or expanded to reduce unnecessary emergency department visits. The California Department of Health Care Services has published findings of the Statewide Collaborative Quality Improvement Project on reducing avoidable emergency room visits.

	Percent of Emergency Depart-
Location	ment Visits that were Avoid-
	able by City, 2006-2008
Newport Beach	37%
Villa Park	37%
Laguna Woods	37%
Laguna Beach	39%
Seal Beach	39%
Laguna Niguel	39%
San Clemente	39%
Mission Viejo	40%
Dana Point	40%
Yorba Linda	40%
Huntington Beach	40%
Irvine	41%
Laguna Hills	41%
Los Alamitos	41%
Rancho Santa Margarita	41%
Fountain Valley	41%
Lake Forest	42%
Aliso Viejo	42%
San Juan Capistrano	42%
La Palma	42%
Costa Mesa	43%
Brea	43%
Cypress	43%
Westminster	44%
California	44%
Tustin	45%
Orange	45%
Orange County	45%
Placentia	46%
La Habra	46%
Fullerton	47%
Garden Grove	47%
Buena Park	48%
Stanton	48%
Anaheim	49%
Santa Ana	50%

Source: Orange County Health Care Agency Emergency Department Utilization Report (http://www.ochealthinfo.com/docs/AgcyPubs/admin/ED_Utilization-Report_23Feb10.pdf)

52



Early Prenatal Care

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of babies born to women who received prenatal care in their first trimester of pregnancy.

Why is this Important to Health?

Early prenatal care provides an excellent opportunity to detect and treat maternal medical problems such as anemia, diabetes, and poor nutrition (10). Early prenatal care, which includes counseling and support for healthy habits such as abstaining from smoking, alcohol, and drug use, can prevent major birth defects and increase opportunities for delivering a healthy baby (11, 12). Mothers who receive late or no prenatal care are more likely to have babies with low birth weight, stillborn or who die in the first year of life (10).

Resources

Programs to increase awareness and reduce barriers to accessing prenatal care are provided by the Kaiser Family Foundation, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, and the California Maternal Quality Care Collaborative.

Location	Percent of Women Receiving Early Prenatal Care by City,
	2006-2008
Newport Beach	96.2%
Irvine	94.8%
Yorba Linda	94.1%
Aliso Viejo	93.9%
Rancho Santa Margarita	93.8%
Villa Park	93.7%
Laguna Beach	93.5%
Seal Beach	93.4%
Brea	93.3%
Laguna Niguel	92.8%
Huntington Beach	91.6%
Mission Viejo	91.0%
Fountain Valley	90.9%
Placentia	90.9%
Costa Mesa	90.7%
Los Alamitos	90.4%
Dana Point	90.3%
San Clemente	90.3%
La Palma	90.3%
Tustin	90.1%
Lake Forest	90.0%
Cypress	89.8%
Orange	89.5%
Orange County	89.4%
Fullerton	89.3%
Laguna Hills	88.6%
La Habra	88.1%
Santa Ana	87.0%
Anaheim	86.9%
Buena Park	86.7%
Garden Grove	86.0%
Westminster	85.8%
Stanton	85.4%
San Juan Capistrano	85.4%
California	83.7%
United States	83.2%
Laguna Woods	80.0%

Source: Orange County Health Care Agency, 2006-2008 Orange County Master Birth File



Low Birth Weight Infants

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of babies born weighing less than 5 pounds, 8 ounces (2,500 grams).

Why is this Important to Health?

Research shows that low birth weight babies are at increased risk of dying during their first year of life and are at risk for developmental delays, disabilities, and other illness (13). Low birth weight and its related potential disabilities can lead to substantial health care costs both in and out of the hospital, impose burdens on special education and social services, and create personal and financial strain on families (13).

Resources

The Promising Practices Network provides many resources and tools related to preventing low birth weight.

Location	Percent of Infants with Low Birth Weight by City, 2006-2008
Laguna Beach	4.2%
Costa Mesa	5.5%
San Clemente	5.6%
Buena Park	5.7%
Yorba Linda	5.9%
Cypress	5.9%
Laguna Niguel	5.9%
Fullerton	5.9%
Orange	6.1%
Brea	6.1%
Garden Grove	6.2%
Placentia	6.2%
Anaheim	6.3%
Orange County	6.4%
Westminster	6.4%
Huntington Beach	6.4%
Santa Ana	6.5%
Seal Beach	6.6%
La Palma	6.6%
Tustin	6.6%
La Habra	6.6%
Lake Forest	6.7%
Stanton	6.7%
Irvine	6.7%
Fountain Valley	6.9%
California	6.9%
Mission Viejo	7.0%
Dana Point	7.1%
Rancho Santa Margarita	7.3%
San Juan Capistrano	7.4%
Los Alamitos	7.4%
Laguna Hills	7.4%
Aliso Viejo	7.5%
United States	8.2%
Newport Beach	8.8%

Source: Orange County Health Care Agency, 2006-2008 Orange County Master Birth File



Infant Mortality

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the number of infant deaths during the first year of life per 1,000 live births.

Why is this Important to Health?

The death of an infant has obvious, devastating impacts on families, not to mention the years of life lost to the infant by dying so young. The medical costs related to infant mortality are also high, particularly when the cause of death is related to prematurity requiring considerable life-saving measures (14). Unmet health needs and unfavorable environmental factors, such as low income, poor or insufficient nutrition, low educational attainment, poor sanitation, and limited or no medical care can all contribute to prematurity and infant mortality (15, 16).

Resources

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention offers interventions targeted at improving maternal health and environmental factors before and during pregnancy, as well as strategies targeted at the baby and family after birth.

Location	Number of Infant Deaths per 1,000 Live Births by City, 2006-2008
Los Alamitos	1.9
Fountain Valley	2.6
Fullerton	2.7
Placentia	2.8
Westminster	3.2
Huntington Beach	3.2
Laguna Niguel	3.2
San Clemente	3.5
Tustin	3.5
Irvine	3.7
Yorba Linda	3.9
Stanton	4.0
San Juan Capistrano	4.0
Brea	4.3
Cypress	4.4
La Palma	4.4
Newport Beach	4.4
Lake Forest	4.6
Laguna Hills	4.7
Orange County	4.7
California	5.1
Garden Grove	5.1
La Habra	5.1
Buena Park	5.1
Santa Ana	5.1
Aliso Viejo	5.4
Anaheim	5.5
Costa Mesa	5.6
Rancho Santa Margarita	5.6
Laguna Beach	5.9
Mission Viejo	6.0
Dana Point	6.6
Orange	6.6
United States	6.8
Seal Beach	9.8

Source: Orange County Health Care Agency, 2006-2008 Orange County Statistical Master Birth File and Mortality File



Breastfeeding

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of mothers who fed their baby with only breast milk and no other supplements while in the hospital (e.g. infant formula).

Why is this Important to Health?

Human milk is the optimal source of nutrition for infants and provides many benefits for healthy growth and development (17). Breastfeeding prevents or reduces the severity of infectious diseases, childhood asthma, ear infections, childhood obesity, and urinary tract infections, among other conditions (18). Mothers benefit from reduced risk of breast and other cancers (19). The initiation of exclusive breastfeeding in the hospital, as well as prenatal preparation, increases the longterm success of breastfeeding (20).

Resources

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has created a guide to approaches that promote breastfeeding.

The Baby-Friendly Hospital Initiative has increased breastfeeding rates through in-hospital policy changes.

Location	Percent Exclusively Feeding Breastmilk in the Hospital by City, 2008
Laguna Beach	61.6%
Villa Park	60.9%
Yorba Linda	57.4%
Seal Beach	56.3%
Newport Beach	54.2%
Brea	53.3%
San Clemente	53.2%
Aliso Viejo	53.1%
Irvine	51.3%
Los Alamitos	51.1%
Huntington Beach	51.1%
California	49.7%
Dana Point	49.1%
Rancho Santa Margarita	48.6%
Laguna Niguel	48.6%
La Palma	47.7%
Fountain Valley	46.6%
Orange	46.4%
Placentia	45.0%
Costa Mesa	44.8%
Tustin	44.3%
Mission Viejo	43.4%
Fullerton	42.5%
Cypress	41.7%
Laguna Hills	41.7%
Orange County	38.2%
La Habra	38.2%
Lake Forest	38.1%
Buena Park	33.0%
Anaheim	29.5%
San Juan Capistrano	29.0%
Westminster	28.7%
Garden Grove	28.0%
Santa Ana	27.0%
Stanton	24.9%

Source: California Department of Public Health, California Newborn Screening Program, (www.cdph.ca.gov/data/statistics/Pages/BreastfeedingStatistics.aspx).



Births to Teens

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the number of live births to females ages 15 through 19 per 1,000 females in the same age range.

Why is this Important to Health?

Teen moms are more likely to smoke during pregnancy than older pregnant women, which has been associated with greater chance of having a premature birth (21, 22). They are also more likely to suffer from depression during and after pregnancy. Teenage mothers are less likely to get or stay married, less likely to complete high school or college, and more likely to require public assistance and live in poverty than their peers who are not mothers (23). Compared to children born to older mothers, children born to teens are more likely to have a higher rate of early mortality and hospitalization, drop out of high school, enter foster care, be on welfare, and have children as teens themselves (24).

Resources

Annie E. Casey Foundation KIDS COUNT program provides six strategies to prevent teen births.

Among many other resources related to teen births, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention has launched Teen Pregnancy Prevention 2010-2015, which is part of the President's Teen Pregnancy Prevention Initiative.

Location	Number of Births to Teens Per 1,000 Teens by City, 2006-2008
Irvine	2.4
Laguna Beach	2.5
Newport Beach	3.0
Yorba Linda	4.6
Los Alamitos	5.2
Fountain Valley	5.4
Laguna Niguel	5.6
Seal Beach	6.3
La Palma	6.4
Brea	7.3
Rancho Santa Margarita	9.0
Villa Park	9.4
Mission Viejo	9.9
Cypress	12.5
Laguna Hills	12.7
Huntington Beach	12.9
Aliso Viejo	13.0
Dana Point	13.7
Lake Forest	18.3
San Clemente	18.8
San Juan Capistrano	23.6
Westminster	25.3
Costa Mesa	27.4
Orange County	28.4
Orange	29.8
Placentia	29.8
Tustin	30.2
Fullerton	32.5
Buena Park	32.9
Garden Grove	36.0
California	36.6
La Habra	38.2
United States	42.5
Anaheim	50.8
Stanton	53.7
Santa Ana	64.3



Teenage Alcohol Use

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of students in ninth grade who report having ever tried alcohol, as defined by the consumption of a single glass, shot, or other single complete serving.

Why is this Important to Health?

Alcohol consumption is the third greatest preventable cause of death in the United States (25). Adolescents who use alcohol at an early age are at increased risk of lifetime alcohol dependence and alcohol abuse, greater sexual risk-taking, academic difficulties, and abuse of other drugs (26). Early adolescent drinkers are also at risk for problems with employment, criminal activity, violent behavior, and alcohol-related traffic collisions and other injuries (26). Alcohol-related problems that start in adolescence and persist into adulthood can then be passed from parent to child, apart from genetics (26).

Resources

The Task Force on Community Preventive Services has published reviews of what works to promote adolescent health, including alcohol use prevention, as well as reviews on the prevention of excessive alcohol consumption.

Location	Percent of Ninth Grade Students who have Tried Alcohol by School
	District, 2007/08
Irvine Unified	25%
Los Alamitos Unified	34%
Tustin Unified	34%
Placentia-Yorba Linda Unified	36%
Huntington Beach Union High	37%
Saddleback Valley Unified	37%
Brea-Olinda Unified	38%
Fullerton Joint Union High	39%
Capistrano Unified	41%
Orange County	41%
Anaheim Union High	44%
Garden Grove Unified	45%
Orange Unified	45%
California	47%
Newport-Mesa Unified	50%
Laguna Beach Unified	54%
Santa Ana Unified	54%

Source: WestEd, California Healthy Kids Survey, 2007/08 (http://chks.wested.org/)



Teenage Smoking

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of students in ninth grade who report having ever smoked an entire cigarette.

Why is this Important to Health?

Tobacco use is the single greatest preventable cause of death in the United States (27). Tobacco use increases risk of death from lung, esophageal, and pancreatic cancers, cardiovascular diseases, bronchitis, pneumonia, emphysema and other diseases (28). The vast majority of adult tobacco users – over 80% – started smoking before the age of eighteen (29). The developing adolescent brain is particularly prone to nicotine addiction, resulting in higher levels of addiction that can be caused by lower levels of tobacco exposure (28). Teenagers are also particularly susceptible to peer-pressure and the influence of positive depictions of tobacco use in media (29).

Resources

The Task Force on Community Preventive Services has published reviews of what works to address tobacco use.

Location	Percent of Ninth Grade Students who have Tried Smoking by School District, 2007/08
Irvine Unified	10%
Los Alamitos Unified	12%
Huntington Beach Union High	15%
Tustin Unified	16%
Fullerton Joint Union High	17%
Newport-Mesa Unified	17%
Placentia-Yorba Linda Unified	17%
Saddleback Valley Unified	18%
Capistrano Unified	19%
Orange County	19%
Anaheim Union High	20%
Brea-Olinda Unified	20%
Orange Unified	20%
California	20%
Garden Grove Unified	21%
Santa Ana Unified	23%
Laguna Beach Unified	30%



Teens with Healthy Body Weight

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the proportion of ninth grade students in public schools who have a healthy body weight.

Why is this Important to Health?

Maintaining a healthy body weight helps to protect individuals from heart disease, certain cancers, stroke, diabetes, depression, and a number of other significant health problems (30). Obesity, as a result of poor diet and physical inactivity, is the second leading preventable cause of death in the United States (31). Since 1980, obesity has doubled among U.S. adults (32) and more than tripled among U.S. children (33). Approximately 70% of teenagers who are obese will become obese adults (34). According to the New England Journal of Medicine, today's children may lead less healthy lives and have shorter life spans than their parents due largely to increasing obesity rates (35).

Resources

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention has developed recommendations for the prevention of obesity through community-based strategies.

Location	Percent of Ninth Grade Students with Healthy Body Composition by School District, 2009/10
Irvine Unified	90%
Laguna Beach Unified	90%
Los Alamitos Unified	87%
Capistrano Unified	86%
Brea-Olinda Unified	82%
Saddleback Valley Unified	82%
Placentia-Yorba Linda Unified	81%
Newport-Mesa Unified	81%
Tustin Unified	79%
Fullerton Joint Union High	79%
Huntington Beach Union High	78%
Orange County	77%
Orange Unified	76%
Garden Grove Unified	73%
California	71%
Anaheim Union High	68%
Santa Ana Unified	62%

Source: California Physical Fitness Test, 2009/10 (http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/pf/pftresults.asp)


Pedestrian Injuries

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the number of motor vehicle-related pedestrian injuries, including deaths, per 100,000 residents.

Why is this Important to Health?

There is a direct impact of injury and death tied to vehicle-related pedestrian accidents (36). Additionally, perceived threats to pedestrian safety can act as a substantial barrier to walking, which is an important source of physical activity in communities (37, 38). Walking can help maintain a healthy body weight (37), which protects individuals from the risk of health problems such as heart disease, cancer, stroke, diabetes and depression.

Resources

The U.S. Department of Transportation and the University of North Carolina Highway Safety Research Center operate walkinginfo.org, a website of the Pedestrian and Bicycling Information Center, which is a resource on the promotion of walking in our communities. Additionally, the National Center for Safe Routes to School provides a clearinghouse of information on promoting safe walking to school.

Lo	ocation	Number of Pedestrian Inju- ries per 100,000 Residents by City, 2006 - 2008
Alis	o Viejo	7
Lag	una Niguel	8
Yorl	ba Linda	12
Mis	sion Viejo	12
Lak	e Forest	12
Irvii	ne	13
Ran	icho Santa Margarita	14
Dar	na Point	16
San	Juan Capistrano	18
San	Clemente	20
Сур	oress	22
Sea	l Beach	22
Plac	centia	23
Ana	heim	24
Lag	una Hills	25
Fou	ntain Valley	27
Ora	nge County	28
Hur	ntington Beach	30
Star	nton	32
Brea	a	32
Gar	den Grove	32
Bue	na Park	33
Ora	nge	33
Tust	tin	36
Full	erton	38
Cali	fornia	38
Wes	stminster	40
San	ta Ana	40
La F	labra	42
Nev	vport Beach	43
Cos	ta Mesa	46
Lag	una Beach	70

Source: California Highway Patrol, Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System, 2006 - 2008 (http://www.chp.ca.gov/switrs/index.html)



Bicycle Injuries

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the number of motor vehicle-related bicycle injuries, including deaths, per 100,000 residents.

Why is this Important to Health?

Bicycling is an important form of physical activity which has been shown to improve physical and mental health, promote healthy weight, and reduce chronic disease risk (39). As a non-motorized form of transportation, bicycling can serve as an important means of reducing air pollution. Real and perceived dangers to bicyclists can prevent them from engaging in this activity and, at the community level, inhibit the range of benefits bicycling can bring (39).

Resources

The U.S. Department of Transportation and the University of North Carolina Highway Safety Research Center operate bicyclinginfo.org, a website of the Pedestrian and Bicycling Information Center, which is a resource on the promotion of bicycling in our communities.

Location	Number of Bicyclist Injuries per 100,000 Residents by City, 2006 - 2008
Rancho Santa Margarita	7
Laguna Niguel	8
Aliso Viejo	10
Mission Viejo	11
San Juan Capistrano	15
Lake Forest	17
Yorba Linda	19
Laguna Hills	21
Dana Point	23
San Clemente	24
Tustin	25
Irvine	26
Stanton	28
Anaheim	29
California	29
La Habra	30
Garden Grove	31
Placentia	31
Seal Beach	32
Santa Ana	33
Orange County	34
Brea	35
Laguna Beach	35
Cypress	35
Orange	40
Buena Park	40
Fountain Valley	41
Fullerton	42
Westminster	42
Huntington Beach	63
Costa Mesa	76
Newport Beach	109

Source: California Highway Patrol, Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System, 2006 - 2008 (http://www.chp.ca.gov/switrs/index.html)



Life Expectancy

Description of Indicator

This indicator measures the average number of years a child born today can expect to live.

Why is this Important to Health?

Average life expectancy at birth is one of the most fundamental measures of the overall health of a community. With advances in medical care and efforts to improve public health, life expectancy has increased by as much as 30 years over the past century in the United States (40). Life expectancy is affected by increased access to health care and reduced premature death due to preventable causes (41). By adopting modest lifestyle changes, including quitting smoking, eating more fruits and vegetables, and increasing physical activity, the average person could add 14 years to their life (42).

Resources

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention has significant resources and recommendations for interventions related to overweight, smoking, healthy diet and physical activity.

Loca	ation	Average Life Expectancy in Years at Birth by City, 2008
San Ju	an Capistrano	85.2
Lagun	a Beach	84.9
Irvine		84.8
Newp	ort Beach	84.6
Lagun	a Hills	83.7
Lagun	a Niguel	83.6
Dana I	Point	82.8
Tustin		82.8
Seal B	each	82.7
Los Ala	amitos	82.5
Lake F	orest	82.2
San Cl	emente	82.0
Fullert	on	81.9
La Hab	ora	81.9
Missio	n Viejo	81.8
Orang	e County	81.5
Orang	e	81.4
Founta	ain Valley	81.3
Brea		81.3
Huntir	ngton Beach	81.3
Santa	Ana	81.2
Cypres	55	81.1
Yorba	Linda	80.9
Placen	itia	80.7
Stanto	n	80.5
Aliso V	/iejo	80.4
Ranch	o Santa Margarita	80.3
Westm	ninster	80.1
Anahe	im	80.0
Costa	Mesa	79.7
Califor	nia	79.7
Garde	n Grove	79.5
Buena	Park	79.3
United	States	78.0

Source: State of California 2008 Death Master File (Excludes cities with populations less than 20,000: Villa Park, La Palma, and Laguna Woods.)



75

REFERENCES

Children with Health Insurance

- Bloom B, Cohen RA, Freeman G. Summary health statistics for U.S. children: National Health Interview Survey, 2009. National Center for Health Statistics. Vital Health Stat 10(247). 2010.
- 2. Institute of Medicine. Insurance is a family matter. Washington, DC: National Academies Press, 2002.

Children with Medi-Cal

- 3. Bernstein J, et al. Issue Brief: How does insurance coverage improve health outcomes? Princeton, NJ: Mathematica Policy Research, Inc., 2010.
- 4. Institute of Medicine. Insurance is a family matter. Washington, DC: National Academies Press, 2002.

Adults with Health Insurance

5. Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (AHRQ). 2007 National Healthcare Disparities Report. Rockville, MD: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality, 2008.

Access to Health Care Providers

- 6. Bärnighausen T and Bloom DE. Financial incentives for return of service in underserved areas: A systematic review. BMC Health Services Research 2009;9:86.
- 7. Kohrs FP an ainous AG. The relationship of health professional shortage areas to health status. Arch Fam Med 1995;4:681-685.

Avoidable Emergency Department Visits

- 8. Delgado M, et al. National survey of preventive health services in U.S. emergency departments. Annals of Emergency Medicine 2001; 57(2):104-108.
- 9. McConville, S. & Lee H. (2008). Emergency Department Care in California: Who Uses It and Why? California Counts. Public Policy Institute of California. 10(1): August.

Early Prenatal Care

10. U.S. Public Health Service (Expert Panel on the Content of Prenatal Care). Caring for our future: The content of prenatal care. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, 1989.

- 11. Kirkham C, et al. Evidence-based prenatal care: Part I. General prenatal care and counseling issues. Am Fam Physician. 2005;17(7):1307-16.
- 12. Kirkham C, et al. Evidence-based prenatal care: Part II. Third-trimester care and prevention of infectious diseases. Am Fam Physician. 2005;71(8): 1555-60.

Low Birth Weight Infants

13. Petrou S, et al. The long-term costs of preterm birth and low birth weight: Results of a systematic review. Child Care Health and Development 2001;27(2):97-115.

Infant Mortality

- 14. Ananth CV, et al. A comparison of fetal and infant mortality in the United States and Canada. Int J Epidemiol. 2009;38(2):480-9.
- 15. Callaghan WM, et al. The contribution of preterm birth to infant mortality rates in the United States. Pediatrics 2006;118(4):1566-73.
- 16. Singh GK and Yu SM. Infant mortality in the United States: trends, differentials, and projections, 1950 through 2010. Am J Public Health 1995;85(7):957-64.

Breastfeeding

- 17. Gartner LM, et al. Breastfeeding and the use of human milk. Pediatrics 2005;115:496-506.
- 18. Jackson KM and Nazar AM. Breastfeeding, the immune response, and long-term health. JAOA 2006; 106(4):203-207.
- Ip S, et al. Breastfeeding and maternal and infant health outcomes in developed countries. Evidence Report/Technology Assessment No 153. AHRQ Publication No. 07-E007. Rockville, MD: Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality, 2007.
- 20. Guise JM, et al. The effectiveness of primary care-based interventions to promote breastfeeding: Systematic evidence review and meta-analysis for the U.S. Preventive Services Task Force. Annals of Family Medicine 2003;1(2):70-78.

Births to Teens

 Levine JA, et al. Academic and behavioral outcomes among the children of young mothers. Journal of Marriage and the Family 2001;63(2):355-369.

- 22. Casares WN, et al. Unpredicted trajectories: The relationship between race/ ethnicity, pregnancy during adolescence, and young women's outcomes. Journal of Adolescent Health 2010;47(2):143-150.
- 23. Haveman R, et al. Childhood poverty and adolescent schooling and fertility outcomes: Reduced-form and structural estimates. In G.J. Duncan and J. Brooks-Gunn, eds., Consequences of growing up poor. New York: Russell Sage Foundation, 1997.
- 24. Jutte DP, et al. The ripples of adolescent motherhood: Social, educational, and medical outcomes for children of teen and prior teen mothers. Academic Pediatrics 2010;10(5):293-301.

Teenage Alcohol Use

- 25. Mokdad AH, et al. Actual causes of death in the United States, 2000. JAMA. 2004;291(10):1238-1245.
- 26. American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP). Policy Statement Alcohol use by youth and adolescents: A pediatric concern. Pediatrics 2010;125:1078-1087.

Teenage Smoking

- 27. Mokdad AH, et al. Actual causes of death in the United States, 2000. JAMA. 2004;291(10):1238-1245.
- 28. Prokhorov AV, et al. Youth tobacco use: A global perspective for child health care clinicians. Pediatrics 2006;118;e890-e903.
- 29. American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP). Policy Statement Tobacco use: A pediatric disease. Pediatrics 2009;124:1474–1487.

Teens with Healthy Body Weight

- 30. Malnick SD and Knobler H. The medical complications of obesity. QJM 2006;99(9):565-579.
- 31. Mokdad AH, et al. Actual causes of death in the United States, 2000. JAMA 2004;291:1238-1245. Correction JAMA 2005;293(3):298.
- 32. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). Prevalence of overweight, obesity and extreme obesity among adults: United States, trends 1960-62 through 2005-2006. Health E-Stats, Accessed 9/10. (http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/data/hestat/overweight/overweight_adult.htm)
- 33. Ogden CL, et al. Prevalence of high body mass index in U.S. children and adolescents, 2007–2008. JAMA 2010;303(3):242–9.

- 34. Dehghan M, et al. Childhood obesity, prevalence and prevention. Nutrition Journal 2005;4(24):online.
- 35. Olshansky SJ, et al. A potential decline in life expectancy in the United States in the 21st century. New England Journal of Medicine 2005;352(11): 1138-1145.

Pedestrian Injuries

- 36. Retting RA, et al. A review of evidence-based traffic engineering measures designed to reduce pedestrian–motor vehicle crashes. Am J Public Health;2003;93:1456–1463.
- 37. McNeill LH, et al. Social environment and physical activity: A review of concepts and evidence. Soc Sci Med. 2006;63:1011–1022.
- Saelens BE and Handy SL. Built environment correlates of walking: A review. Med Sci Sports Exerc. 2008;40(7S):S550–S566.

Bicyclist Injuries

39. Reynolds CO, et al. The impact of transportation infrastructure on bicycling injuries and crashes: A review of the literature. Environmental Health 2009;8:47.

Life Expectancy

- 40. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Healthy People 2010: Understanding and Improving Health (2nd Edition), U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C., November 2000.
- 41. Lee, H and McConville, S. (2007) Death in the Golden State: Why Do Some Californians Live Longer? Public Policy Institute of California. Vol. 9, No. 1. August.
- 42. Khaw KT, et al. Combined impact of health behaviours and mortality in men and women: The EPIC-Norfolk prospective population study. PLoS Medicine 2008;5(1):e12.

Healthy Places, Healthy People 2012

This report was created by a collaborative of community partners.













WILLIAM M. HABERMEHL County Superintendent of Schools